
 1

DRAFT COPY - SUBJECT TO COMMITTEE APPROVAL  
 

BOARD: TAZEWELL COUNTY 
 

COMMITTEE: LAND USE  
 

DATE/TIME: Tuesday, August 10, 2010 at 5:00 p.m. 
 

PRESENT: Chairman Hillegonds, Joyce Antonini, K. Russell Crawford, Paul Hahn, 

Darrell Meisinger, Rosemary Palmer, Melvin Stanford,  
 

ABSENT: Sue Sundell 
 

STAFF PRESENT: Kristal Deininger, Community Development Administrator; Nicholas 

Hayward, Land Use Planner; James Newman, ZBA Chairman 
 

OTHERS PRESENT: Mary Ann Vance 
           

 

CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Hillegonds called the meeting to Order at 5:00 p.m. 

 

MINUTES:   Moved by Stanford, seconded by Hahn, to approve the minutes of the July 

13, 2010,  Land Use meeting, as distributed.  On voice vote, motion 

declared carried.  

 

CASES: 

LU-10-10 

Case No. 10-44-Z  The petition of Mary Ann Vance, representing Scott and Barbara Theede 

  for a Map Amendment to the Official Spring Lake Township Zoning Map 

  of Tazewell County to change the zoning classification of property from an 

  A-1 Agriculture Preservation Zoning District to an A-2 Agriculture Zoning 

  District. 

 

    Chairman Hillegonds reminded the Committee the request is the 38 acre 

remnant of land that was brought before the Committee last month for 

Rezoning. 

 

    Russell Crawford asked that the Land Use Planner review his Negative 

Findings of Fact for the Committee. 

 

    Paul Hahn questioned the total number of dwellings that would be allowed 

if the property were to be Rezoned.   

 

    Following discussion, moved by Antonini, seconded by Palmer, to 

recommend approval of LU-10-10, Case No. 10-44-Z, to the Tazewell 

County Board. 

 

    On roll call the vote was: 

    Ayes – 2 - Stanford, Hillegonds     

    Ayes – 5 – Antonini, Crawford, Hahn, Meisinger, Palmer 

    Motion failed.   

 

 



 2

    Community Development Administrator Deininger requested a motion be 

made to prepare Negative Findings to present to the Tazewell County 

Board.     

 

    Following discussion, moved by Crawford, seconded by Hahn to direct the 

Community Development Administrator to prepare Negative Findings to 

present to the Tazewell County Board.  On voice vote, motion declared 

carried. 

 

COMM. DEVEL. ADM.:   

Groveland Shed Removal Administrator Deininger stated she had exhausted all resources to place 

the individual residing in a shed within Groveland Township.  Ms. 

Deininger said the Tazewell County Highway Department was willing to 

assist in the removal of the shed.  Ms. Deininger added the resident would 

likely be forcibly removed by the Sheriff’s Department.  Ms. Deininger 

stated prior to any action, she would re-notice the resident of the intent.  

Ms. Deininger said the resident was not a Veteran and did not have a 

relationship with his family.  Ms. Deininger added the property taxes were 

paid and the resident had been through the Hearing Officer process.  Ms. 

Deininger stated during that process it was discovered the resident 

completed odd jobs such as painting in order to make money.  Ms. 

Deininger said the ZBA had approved the shed be constructed prior to a 

dwelling, however the dwelling was never constructed even though the 

permit for a dwelling had been issued.  Ms. Deininger added the Code 

stated there was to be a minimum of 700 square feet to be considered a 

dwelling and the resident would have to obtain a Septic Permit from the 

Health Department. 

 

    Russell Crawford questions if the shed removal should be a Health and 

Safety issue and what the legalities would be if the shed were not 

removed. 

 

    Paul Hahn stated a concern of making the resident of the shed a homeless 

individual. 

 

    Chairman Hillegonds expressed an opinion that there are places for the 

homeless to stay, some choose to remain homeless.  Chairman Hillegonds 

stated the resident never “got around” to constructing the dwelling and 

said he was concerned of a precedence being set if the shed was allowed to 

remain and be occupied. 

 

    Melvin Stanford suggested Dan McCormick, the Groveland Township 

Supervisor be contacted regarding the situation as he was very 

compassionate towards individuals. 

 

    Darrell Meisinger questioned if a Variance could be given to allow for a 

placement of a Mobile Home on the property rather than leaving the 

resident homeless. 

 

    This item was for discussion purposes only, no action was taken. 



 3

 

Flood Map Modernization Administrator Deininger stated that the new Flood Maps for Tazewell 

County were released in a preliminary stage by FEMA.  Ms. Deininger 

said there would be an Open House on Tuesday, September 14, 2010, at 

the Tazewell Farm Bureau which will be divided into 2 sessions.  The first 

session will be from 2:30 to 4:30 p.m. for local government officials and 

the second session will be from 6:00 top 8:00 p.m. for members of the 

general public. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS: Discussion was held by Committee Members regarding conduct during the 

ZBA Public Hearings, and other discussion was held with regards to 

Special Uses and Variances being approved only by the ZBA and not 

continuing on to the County Board for final approval.  Regarding conduct 

at the ZBA meetings, ZBA Chairman noted that all statements regarding a 

zoning case should only be conducted during the deliberations and not 

during the presentation of cases and testimony. 

 

    Other questions were raised regarding the decision in 2003 to have final 

approval on Special Uses and Variances by the ZBA versus the County 

Board.  Administrator Deininger commented that due to case law it was 

recommended by the State’s Attorney that all Special Use and Variance 

requests were administrative and subject to all rules and regulations for 

administrative hearings and therefore required only ZBA approval. 

However, all Rezoning and Code amendments were legislative and 

required County Board approval.  Ms. Deininger stated that the 

requirements were changed based on the opinion of the State’s Attorneys 

Office to prevent any potential lawsuits which could result against the 

County if the Code had not been changed.  Lengthy discussion followed 

regarding this issue, no action was taken. 

 

BILLS:   Moved by Crawford, seconded by Stanford, to approve the bills for the 

Community Development Department as submitted. On voice vote, 

motion declared carried. 

 

NEXT MEETING: The next meeting of the Land Use Committee will be an In Place Meeting 

held on Wednesday, September 29, 2010, at 5:00 p.m. in the Community 

Room of the Tazewell County Justice Center. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:45 p.m. 

   

   Kristal Deininger, Secretary   
    


